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Commander Davis?

Admiral Bellinger: Very close.

Senaﬁor Lucas: Did Commander Davis discuss with you

at any time the acceptance of any of these messages that

: came from the Chief of Naval Operations?
: Agmiral Bellinger: No, sir. I.do not know that he knew
about that.
4 Mr. Murphy: Will the Senator yield? I expect to go
1: into the Davis matter and show that he did not know about
% A that either.
;i_' - Senator Lucas: What were the duties of General Davis?
; S The Chairman: Commander Davis.
E > Jenator Lucas: I keep getting my Generals and Commanders
;‘: 'a mixed. '
‘e The Chairman: Go shead. Pardon the interruption.
s Senator Lucas: It is perfectly all right, sir.
What were the duties of Commander Davis?
. ‘Admiral Bellinger: He was the Aviation Aide on the
: Staff of Admiral Kimmel and his duties were assigned by
| . & Agmiral Kimmel.
5 Senator Lucas: How often did you see him?
; Admiral Bellinger: I would say I vas in communication
: with him by telophohe or saw him at least, I should say, on
LaCharity A3 the average of every day.
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Senator Lucas:; Did he give you any direct orders as

. ~ to what you should do with respect to the Air For&e?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir. He had no authority except
by virtue of being on thex staff of Admiral Kimmel.

Senator Lucas: What he was then was sort of a lilaison
man, 1s that 1t?

Admiral Bellinger: He was an Ailde to Admiral Kimm_elo

Senator Lucas: And Admiral Kimmel was the only one

who could give you orders as to what to do then?
10 ..

, + Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.
1

Senator Lucas: At no time, as I understand 1t, during
12

2 the months of November and October did Admiral Ximmel talk

‘a to you about any messages that he might have received from

Weshington, D. C.?

2D Q "NOLONIHSYM "INVd ¥ aGuvym

15

o Admiral Bellinger: He did not talk to me about them.

o Senator Lucas: I call your attention to Exhibit 37.

18 'As an example, page 1, the message of April 1, 1941, which

vas sent by Admiral Stark to Admiral Kimmel. It says:

: "PERSONNEL OF YOUR NAVAL INTELLIGENCE SERVICE SHOULD
0

" BE ADVISED THAT BECAUSE OF THE FACT THAT FROM PAST EXPERIENCE
I

' 2 SHOWS THE AXIS POWERS OFTEN BEGIN ACTIVITIES IN A PARTICULAR
2

FIELD ON SATURDAYS AND SUNDAYS OR ON NATIONAL HOLIDAYS OF
23

THE COUNTRY CONCERNED, THEY SHOULD TAKE STEPS ON SUCH DAYS
24

TO SEE THAT PROPER WATCHES AND PRECAUTIONS ARE IN EFFECT."
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Are you familiar with that order?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir, but I was famillar with
the general situation in that respect. As a matter of fact,
my Operations Officer wrote an article which was published
in the Naval Institute, I think in 1936, which practically
duplicated this estimate of the situation in regard to an
attack on Pearl Harbor by the Japanese.

Senator Lucas: Yes.

Admiral Bellinger: So that this was not any news,
particularly.

Senator Imcas: I see. It was no news at all? It was
merely & reminder of something you already knew?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Senator Lucas: Now, what was the condition of these

' planes that were destroyed by the Japanése on December 7

on the Saturday before? Were they in the same places, the
same condltions, the same spots?

Agmiral Bellinger: No, sir, I don't think so. I can't
say for sure but I would be willing to bet they were not
in the same places.

Senator Lucas: Were there more planes on hand at that
particular time than there were during the other days of

the week, on this particular Sunday morning? I presume

your cperatlion schedule would show exactly as to the dispersal
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of your plenes during that week.

Admiral Bellinger: I believe there were more, perhaps,
on the beach on Saturday than there were on Sunday. .

Senator ILucas: Why was that? Was that payday?

Admiral Bellinger: Well, we had beén working pretty
strong on the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and 5th, and you have got to do
something about easing up on personnel.

Senator Iucas: I appreciate that.

Admiral Bellinger: But every day was a working day.
That was started in my forces about 1 March, or maybe 1 April.

Senator Iumcas: Well, it 1s a fact that there were
more Naval officers and men at Pearl Harbor on the week-end
than at any other time, is 1t not?

Admiral Bellinger: On week days?

Senator Lucas: No, on the week-ends, Saturdays and
Sundays. That was the custom, wasn't 1t?

Admiral Bellinger: Not necessarily. As far as my
outfit was concerned I trled to' make & schedule that wéuld
hold water utilizing every day as a work day, Saturdays and
Sundays the same as Tuesdays or Wednesdays. But there
vere certain combinations which did make & let-up at times
maybe more than others.

As I said before, if you look at this schedule you

will find on Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday there
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vas considerable activity and that was when we were having

A wing tactics.
3 Jenator Lucas: Well, was that the regular operation
i schedule every week?
: Admiral Bellinger: WNo, sir, not every week, but it
; was in our schedule of employment.
: Senator ILucas: It shows that you were busy the first
; part of the week and then over the week-end these fellows
: wore entitled to some rest and recreation.
g ¥ Admiral Bellinger: Yes, but that doésn't follow nec-
| é . essarily all the way through.
. % i senator Lucas: Now, where were you when the attack
% : took place?
o Admiral Bellinger: I was taken sick with what they
4120 call acute laryngitis, I belleve, a type of flu, on December
2) i 2, and on December 7, ﬁhat was to be my first day up.
4 Sena;tor Lucas; I see.
5 Admiral Bellinger: I got up very hurriedly.
£ Senator Luces: You didn't wait for the doctor to tell you?
g Admiral Bellinger: No, sir.
. 2 Senator Lucas: Who was in commend while you were away?
o Admiral Bellinger: I was still in command and in touch
.23 every day with my Operation Officer who was my second in
24

command, at that time Commander Ramsey.

25
1
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Senator Lucas: Were you in the hospital?

No, sir, I was at home. The first

Admiral Bellinger:
message that I received about the attack was from Commander
Ramsey, now Captain, and I would say that it was probably
a few seconds before 8:00 o'clock.

Senator Lucas: When did you first see Admiral Kimmel

after the attack?

Admiral Bellinger: I talked to him on the telephone

the day of the attack , over the telephone. I did not see

him until a few days later.

Senator Lucas: When was the last --
Admiral Bellinger: As a matter of fact, I stayed 1n
the off'lce practically all the time.

Senator Lucas: When was the last time you talked To
Agmiral Kimmel before December T7?

Admiral Bellinger: I don't remember exactly but I think
the latter part of November, probably the 26th or 27th.
Senator Lucas: Do you recall what you talked about?

Adamiral Bellinger: There was a conference, I remember,
in connection with -- whether that was the last time or not
T am not sure -- but I know I was over there in a conference
with reference to meking plans for these planes to be put

on Wake and Midway.

Senator Lucas: There was nothing at that time sald
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about the imminence of war with Japan?
Agmiral Bellinger: No, not with reference to any war
varning or diupatohes' from Washington in connection with 1it.
Senator Lucas: I direct your attention again to
Exhibit 37. Just take a cursory glance at the messages
sent by the Chief of Naval Operations, particularly the one

of October 16, which says:
"THE RESIGNATION OF THE JAPANESE CABINET HAS CREATED

A GRAVE SITUATION., IF A NEW CABINET IS FORMED IT WILL

10
PROBABLY BE STRONGLY NATIONALISTIC AND ANTI-AMERICAN. IF

11
THE RONOYE CABINET REMAINS THE EFFECT WILL BE THAT IT WILL

12
OPERATE UNDER A NEW MANDATE WHICH WILL NOT INCLUDE RAPPROCHMENT

13

WITH THE U.S."
14

And so on. Are you familiar with that message?

D 0 'NOLONIHSYM "INVd ¥ QdVYM

i Admiral Bellinger: One minute until I find it. What

iy page 1is 1t?

. Senator Lucas; Page 18. Did you ever see that message?
i Admiral Bellinger: No, sir, I don't remember seeing

19 that before December T.

20

Senator Lucas: Have you read it since these hearings
21

started?
22
Admiral Bellinger: Sir?
23
Senator Lucas: Have you read that message since these

24
hearings started?

o
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Admiral Bellinger:; I think I have seen them all.

Senator Lucas: You have seen them all?

Admiral Bellinger: I think so. Most of these were
shown to me at various investigations on this subject. And,
as a matter of fact, I didn't know tha.'t there was any message
other than one message, the war warning message, until 194l4.

Senator Lucas: You are famillar with all of these
top secret messages that were sent?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir, not familiar.

Senator Lucas: You have read them all?

Admiral Bellinger: I have read the testimony on a
good many of them.

Senator Luoaszl Directing your attention to the message

of November 24, assuming Admiral Kimmel had given you that

i

U

message, the Admiral has complained bitterly because Washington
didn't give him all the information they had, I am wondering
what yﬁu would have done had Admiral Kimmel given to 36u
the message of November 24. It is found on page 36. That
1s the message that says a surprise aggressive movement is
possible in any direction. What would that message have
conveyed to you, if anything? Give us your best judgment
on 1t now, although I appreciate it is hindsight.

Admiral Bellinger: Hindsight is one thing and foresight

is another. This situation at Pearl Harbor was another. I
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1 o

: have been asked that question many times. ’
1 2 :

| j a Senator Lucas: The reason I ask -- ‘

;' ,' " Admiral Bellinger: I wish I had seen it. I don't |
i = !
| : know what I would have done. I would rather have the people b |

who know me think what I would have done. Only God knows g

(3]
. vhat I would have done. I can't make any statement on that.
| A Senator Lucas: Well, the reason I ask the questian

the Air Forces there.

\
|
5 1s that you were in charge of, more or less in charge of ] I
; 10
E . Admiral Bellinger: Patrol planes only. {/
. !g 2 Senator Lucas: Who had charge of the other planes?
‘ ‘; - Admiral Bellinger: Various commands of the air in the
| § ¥ Fleet. For instance, there were utility planes headed by _:
g.- : i & wing commander. There were Marine planes headed by a i t
| o colonel. There were carrier planes and ‘orga.nization headed |
s by Admiral Halsey. |
. Senator Lucas: I see. i- 1
2 I suppose what you have said about this message would il !
- be true about the war warning message, too, of November 277 ' 5
o Agmiral Bellinger: If I would have gotten any of _ :
o these messages I would have made an estimate of the situation, | i
= vith my knowledge a.nd understanding at the time, and taken
< action accordingly.

& Senator Lucas: Do you belleve now, Admiral, that you

| l
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i \ - wvere entitled to receive these messages from Admiral Kimmel

| ' ; in view of the position that you had there as Commander
. ¥ ot A PabSo FISeE?
| i‘ : Admiral Bellinger: I think that was Admiral Kimmel's
’ business entirely. I can't answer for that.
I ; Senator Lucas: Well, I was wondering what your
L ﬁ i position would be. You say that you would have liked to
i | - have seen the messages, you would have liked to have had
g them in your ﬁosaession. You at ‘1east by implication say
J,{ % :(: you would have had more insight into what was going on. I
| 3 am wondering whether or not you thought it was the duty of
% : Agmiral Kimmel to pass this kind of message on to you under
| g the arrangement that you had out there?
{ E g Admiral Bellinger: I certainly am not one to say
} 3 - what the Commander in Chief’s duty was. I was under him.
I Hook %
follows 17
: 18
1} ”
20
| 21
22
! 23
¢ 25 .
.
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Senator Iucas: In other words, vhatever he did was

all right with you?

3. Admiral Bellinger: I wouldn't have been‘rull of
. inhibitions, as I remember. I think that if I saw something
: that I thought I should have seen at the time, I think I
X probably would have brought the question up with him.
> Senator Iucas: Well, that is what I am trying to
" ask you about, that is what I am trying to find out,
. whether or not you think you should have seen any of these
§ & messages. I am basing that now, primarlly, on the con-
é > tention that Admiral Kimmel has made in his case before
; i’ the committee, He complains bitterly because Admiral
% L Stark didn't send him information.
E A In view of the fact that you were a subordinate of
p Admiral Kimmel, I am wondering what you think of his faill-
Y ing to send you information, if he did.
% Admiral Bellinger: I think your guess 1s apout as
5 good as mine, I can express an opinion. I can say that
E if he had shown me the messagass and the situation 4id re-
X main as is, why, I would be in a different situation at
& the present time.
- Senator Lucas: Well, I don't know what that situation
23

is, and I am not going to inguire into 1it.
24

e Mr. Keefe: Will the Senator vield?
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Mr. Keefe

Senator Lucas: Yes.

Mpr. Keefe: I want to make just this observation. : 2
think it is quite apparent that Admiral Bellinger at
that time was a Commander. Is that true?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir, a rear admiral.

Mr., Keei"ez A real admlral:

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr., Keefe: But you were serving under the direct
orders of the Commander in Chief of the Pacific Fleet?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mp. Keefe: You were not a member of his staff?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir; I was a taalc‘ force
commander under him.

Mpr. Keefe: You took orders from him?

Admiral Bellinger: Took orders from him, yes, sir.

M.;c-. Keefe: That is the way 1t works in the Navy
isn't 1t, Admiral?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mp. Keefe: In the line of command?

Admirel Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mp. Keefe: Fellows down below don't usually dispute
the higher-ups, do they? .

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir. In good team work

opinions are expressed back and forth.
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Mr. Keefe: We have had some evidence of that before

Witness Bollingér

this coomittee, I think,
That is all,
The Chairman: Are you through, Senator?

Senator Lucas: One other question.

The only reason I raised these questions is that you
raise it yourself. In other words, you must have attached
some significance to the fact thatyou never saw any of
these papers given to Admiral Kimmel until after the war
was on, becsuse you so state.

You state in your statement on page 8:

"I had no knowledge of any of the warning messages
emanating from the Navy and War Departments, during October
November and December. I never knew of any warning dis-
patches until a few days after the attack -- on the evening
of about December 10, I think it was -- when I was told
by one of my officers that he had just heard that there
had been a warning dispatch received in the District Naval

Intelligence Office, and that the local Intelligence

‘officer of the Navel Air Station knew about it. I immediately

sent for that Intelligence officer, and he confirmed this
information. Several days after that, when I was working on

some papers with Admiral Kimmel, I first saw one of the

wvarning dispatches."
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hi \ In other words, it spparently disturbed you at the
. i time that you hadn't seen any of these messages, and you
: immediately contacted the District Naval Intelligence
; Office.
. Admirsal Bellinger: 7Yes, sir, I did that. I could
: have recommended to him that we do start patrols.
: Senator Lucas: That is right. That is the point 1
- am trying to develop. You did have it within your power
’ to meke such a recommendation, that long distance recon-
g 2 nelssance be used, The point that I was hoping you would
. é . ansver was whether or nof if you had all of this Informa-
% G tion at hand, and had the chance to analyze it, whether
% - or-not it might have made a difference with you in respsct
E = to the rscommendations that at least you might have made?
e Admiral Bellinger: There 1is a possibility.
i | Senator Lucas: There 1s s possibility. Was Admiral
= Kimmel depending upon you for commendations as to whether
X or not the long distance reconnalissance would be made?
) Admiral Bellinger: Not to my knowledge.
- Senator Lucas: That i1s what I wanted to know about,
. X You were concerned sbout this. You wanted the committee
e to know that you didn't receive any of these messages
23

after November 27 and before. I was trying to find out why

24

25 you wanted the committee to kmow about 1it,

|
e el S A = ..




o401

Admirel Bellinger: Yes, sir.
25
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‘ i Mr. Murphy
h5 Admiral Bellinger: I want everybody to know éout 1it.
. Senator Lucas: I see. I think that 1is al].
® ! The Chairman: Mr. Clark. | |
g Mr, Clark: I have no questions. 3
7 The Chairman: Senator George would be next, but he
® || w111 inquire later.
4 Mr. Murphy.
> The Chair would like to advise that he is advised
® || that if possible without restricting any members' interro- ]
; e gation, that Admiral Bellinger is on an assignment that makes f‘
5 s it important that he get away tonight, if possible; but I
. I !; e am just advising the committee of that so we may keep it
T 183
g in mind.
E & Mr. Murphy.
Sy Mr. Murphy: Admiral Bellinger, there has been handed
e to the committee a statement on your career with the U. 3.
: Navy covering the time from 1913 on.
= I note in the sketch that was given to us that from
i 1914 on, you had a very active participation in the air
g activities of the U. S. Navy; that 1s a fact, is it not?
. o Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.
o Mr. Murphy: You were in the first Navy plane that was
-3 ever struck by an enemy bullet; isnit that right?
24
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h6 Mr, Murphy: That was down at Vera Cruz?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Then you went to Pensacola, Florida 1in
1915 and in the following year -- rather, on January 21,
you were designated Naval Air Pilot No. 4?

A&mira.l Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Thereafter, in 1915, you partlcipated in

8y
the development of the use of the catapult; is that right?

)
I Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

10
Mr. Murpby: Thereafter you piloted flying boat AB-3

11

and wvere on the.first extended flight of this kind ordered

12
and carried out?

13
Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

14 |
F Mr. Murphy: In 1915 you made the American altitude

13 l

S Q 'NOLONIHEYM "INvd ® QlYM

record for a seaplane of 10,000 feet; on 1915 you partici-
16 e

Il pated in the first actual instance in the Navy where Navy

17

aircraft spotted actual gun or mortar file; in 1916 you

18 :
| conducted live bomb dropping tests from a plane, the first

10

test of this nature to be conducted by the Navy; in 1916

20
you participated in the first instance of spotting, and

21
b 3 i firing at regular targets at sea by the Navy.

22
Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

23
Mr. Murphy: In 1916, you conducted experimental tests

24
with radio =et in pontoon type of seaplanes; in 1917 you
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madeé the first machine gun firing tests ever made in

& Navy plane; in 1917 you conducted the first night
seaplane flight in which floodlights were embloyed on

the beach for illuminating the water, and that marks

the beginning of night flying at Pensacola and of regular
night flying instructions in the Navy.

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir,

Mr. Murphy: In 1919, you participated in the first
trans-Atlantic flight as commanding officer of the NC-1.
You made a lonzg overseas flight from Newfoundland to the
vicinity of the Azores in May 1919.

In other words, on down through the years, were those
I have_outlinod, together with others that follow, you
had a very distinguished and outstanding career in the
Navy, on which I want to congratulate you at this time,

And you were the type of man that was selected by
Washington to be sent to Honolulu; that is right, isn't 1t?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir, but --

Mr. Murphy: At any rate, you vere sent there?

Admiral Bellinger: I was ordered there,

Mr. Murphy: Now, then, after you got to Honolulu,
you were also ordered to conduct a survey and to prepare
& plan in conjunotién'with General Martin of the Army Air

Corps; that is right too, isn't 1t?
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Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: And thet plan which you developed, was
in effect a chart of exactly what happened at Pesrl Harbor
on December 7, 1941, with the exception of a few details;
that is right, too, isnft 1it?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Now then, you ware placed unier that plan
in charge of certain operations which you did not have the
authority to carry out until the means with which to carry
it out were made available to you by higher authority;
isn't that so?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir,

Mr. Murphy: The fact is that throughout this entire
critical period, you wers never shown any of these dis- |
patches which in an official way showed the development
of a tense and critical situation; that is true, isn't
1t?

Admiral Bellinger: That 1s correct.

Mr. Murphy: When Admiral Kimmel was on the stand
I questioned him as to why he had not consulted you who
wvere unquestionably an outstanding air mart, and he said
that he consulted his own man, Commander Davis, I would

now like to diract your attention to the fact that Com-

mander Davis was called to testify before Admirel Hewitt
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and his testimony appears in the record as that of Rear
Admiral Arthur C. Davis, commencing at page 96.

Mr. Masten: Pardon me? Is that the Hart or the
Hewitt report?

Mr. Murphy: This is the Hart report. I beg your
pardon. I

And the same Rear Admiral Arthur C. Davis was the
air men on the staff of Admiral Kimmel immediately pre-

ceding --
The Vice Chairman: The Air Aide.

Mr. Murphy: Was his Air Alde on the Staff of Admiral
Kimmel immediately preceding December 1941.

Isn't that right, Admiral?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, slr.

My, Murphy: I would like to go to the testimony in
question.

Admirsl Davis, as I recollect it, did think that there
could have been instituted a system of reconnaissance
whereby you would use certain planes in the less critical
areas and other planes in the more critical areas. Do you
know of any such possibility? For reconnaissance purposes?

Admirael Bellingsr: Actually, on December 7 we used

planes of every type and description, some that could only
)

g0 |200 miles. On the days following December 7, we used
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planes that were made avallable for the distances that
they could go. That was to get information as far out
as we could through all the various sectors surrounding
Pearl Harbor.

Actually, in fact, for prevention of an air rald,
the further out you can get information the better. And
in order to figure on preventing an air raid in the early
morning and having this information, 1t was considered
that the patrol planes should go out between 7 and 8 hundred
miles.

Mr. Murphy: At any rate, Admiral, you were never
confronted with the problem becguse you weren't taken into
the confidence of those in command; isn't that right?

Admiral Bellinger: In general, yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: And the best -- excuse me.

‘AdmiréliBellinger: I was not asked or shown.

Mr. Murphy: The best we can do is to ask you as an
air expert to speculate by way of hindsight what you would
have done before December T7; that is right too, isn't 1t?

At any rate, you diin't see them, you weren't asked
to pass on them; it wasn't your problem directly until
you were consulted on them; isn't that true?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Now, I -- excuse me.
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Admiral Bellinger: On December 7.

Mr, Murphy: I say, up to December 7, Admiral.

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Up to December 7.

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

iMr; Murphy: The fact is that up to the morning of
December 7, you were a man sick in bed and pretty much
concerned about improving the health of Admiral Bellinger,
I assume, I didn't mean to go into the actual attack
itself.

Now, then, on page 97, the question was asked -- you
do not have this, Admiral -- page 97, the question was
asked of Rear Admirael Davis, who was the Air Aide on

Admiral Kimmelis staff:

3
»
- )
o
@
>
c
g
-3
>
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-
:
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o
0

"Q Admirsl, available records indicate that you

have knowledge pertinent to the Japanese attack on Pearl

Harbor that occurred on 7 Dgcember, 1941, Please state
the facts within your knowledge concerning the attack and

the major events leading up thereto. It is especially

deslred that you cover the following, anla written copy
of this question is handed you so that you may refer to
it as you testify: -- " '
Now, then, the Agmiral testified for several paragraphs

as to the questlion itself, and what i1t was looking for, and




then appears his answer, the last paragraph on the bottom
of page 97 :
"A My duty as Fleet Aviation Officer was primarily,

hl2 Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Murphy
if not almost entirely, concerned with technical training
|

3 and logistics matters. As the case with the Staff as
g a whole, our primary interest formany months had been
; the improvement in strength and proficlency of the Pacific
|| Fleet.
g "As is no doubt well known, it had not been possible,
§ Ao for various reasons, Including appropriations, to develop
5 “ the Fleet to a point which, it is now known, was necessary.
. ; s i{oweverg- this fact made it all the more important to con-
c5 % > centrate on all phases of materiel and training.
-f e "I, myself, had 1little to do with considerations of
Al ‘I attack possibilities, and I do not recall ever being direct-
16 |

ly consulted on such matters by the; Commander in Chief.
17

Naturally, the subject was frequently discussed among members

16

Staff at times when I was present.

s "From these discussions, I can definitely state my

' & opinion that 1t was the Commander in Chief"s belief that
it it was vitally necessary to contlinue as long as possible
o with the training and other Fléet improvements, and that
5} going into a defensive status would interfere with this
25

|
18 '
of the Staff and also by the Commander in Chief with the
|
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Murphy
work, so that I am convinced it was his sincere intention
to accomplish all that could be done before hostilities
began and that he believed there was still time to keep
the work going.

"As td.tha imminent possibility of attack, I only
occasionally saw or heard of warnings that may have been
recelved by the Commander in Chief. I know that there had
been many warnings of varying degrees of seriousness over
& number of months, and I had the impression that it was
within the Commander in Chiefis discretion to determine
how far to go in action with regard to such warnings.

"I believe his thought throughout was to take pre-
cautionary steps within reason but to regard the warnings
as all the more réason.for canéentratian on improving the
Fleet's readiness.

"During the period of strain'whiah'finally led up
to the events of 7 December, I am certain that the Commandier
in Chief gave the situation the carefulest possible con-
sideration. I have to admlt, however, that I was, myself
concerned because of information that was avallable in the
press and that I concluded that there must be other informa-
tion which had not been shown me that influenced the deci-
sion to take no greater precautionary steps than were taken.

"As to advice with regerd to precautions, I was asked
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr., Murphy

not so much for an opinion as to whether or not the fullest
precautions should be taken, as for information with regard
to the practicabllity of comprehensive searches, ani their
effect on training. Comprehensive and extensive air
searches were practicable, and I so stated. I also stated
the fact that this would very definitely interfere with

the progress in general in aviation traeining in the Fleet.

"This, as was the case in the Fleet és a whole, was
important in view of the tralning demanded by the rapid
expansion that was aiready‘beginning to take place.

"With respect to the surprise air attack, I naturally
expressed the opinlon that this was possible and that it
could only be presvented by the most extensive searches
and efforts to intercept at sea by air and surface
vessels.

"I did not, howevef, realize to what a high degree
of proficlency Japanese naval aviation had been developed.
I do not believe that anybody else in the American Navy
had any proper conception of this development either.
Certainly I had never seen anything, either officially
or unofficially that would lead me to suppose that Japanese
naval aviation was so tremendously effective and well-
developed as it turned out to be."

At that point I would like to ask you, did you in

-

R
e
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Hawail, consider the ability of Yamamoto and his daring?

Admiral Bellinger: I was asked the question at one
other hearing whether I was fully cognizant of Yamamoto's
background. I am not sure whether I was conscious of it
before Decemmber 7 or after. I think I was.

Mr. Murphy: Ceptaln Layton -- Excuse me. Go ahead.

Admiral Bellinger: With reference to the abllity of
the Japanese, which they showed in their attack on December
T, it far surpassed my estimate of thelr abllity.

Mr, Murphy: There was a book ebout which Captailn
Layton testified in the Hart proceedings, and that book
seemed to discuss tﬂe question of a possible raid on
Pearl Harbor and the capabilities of te Japanese. Were
you considered and brought into those discussions, or given
the benefit of that?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir,

Mr. Murphy: I would like to refer now partlicularly
to the testlmony of Captain Layton at page 214. At any
rate you were not in those discussions about Yamamoto and
this book that was published and the discussions about a
possible rain on Pearl Harbor?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Now, Admirasl, there has also been testimony
in this record that the north was not the most dangerous
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section. As I recall, reading the record of all the hear-

~ ings, there seemed to be almost a unanimous opinion that

|

the north was the most dangerous, and in your statement

you so state, do you not?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Now, you give as the reason for foéling
that i1t was the most dangerous, the wind conditions. Did
you also take into consideration the fact that in the north,
where they did come from, was the so-called Vacant Sea ?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Did you also --

Excuse me;. Let me add this, and then you can answer
both. Did you also take into consideration the fact that
whatever shipping there had been previously in that area,
it had been eliminated prior to December T?

Now, will you answer both?

Admiral Bellinger: I didn't know that it had been
eliminated up there. I am not so sure that 1t was.

Mr. Murphy: Well, there is some testimony to that
effect.

Admirel Bellinger: The question was where the Japanese
were going to come from, and we were not conducting
patrols from Paluyra, or Johnston Islands, as a regular

proposition, and I presume thatthe Japanese would have known
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Witness Bellinger Quoationn by: Mr. Murphy
about it, so therg wvas nothing to stop them from coming
from that diraction.either; but 1t is a very serious
proposition, a vital proposition to a carrier, in connec-
tion with the operation of planes.

It must head into the wind, and it must get up enough
speed to compensate for the wind thatis blowing in order to
have a sufflicient force of wind ovér the deck. So that
the wind controls the direction af,moﬁemant of the carrier,
and I don't believe an attack of the kind that was made
on Pearl Harbor where surprise was expected to be the major
affalr, or where they felt there might bg considerable
Jeoperdy would take place in a direction'wﬁerein the carrier
had to take on her planes after having 1&uhéhed them,
heading toward the Island.

Mr. Murphy: At any rate, Admiral, had you had any
knowledge of the fact that all shipping had been directed
to the south through the Torres Strait before December 7?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir.

Mr., Murphy: That had been done since October, but
you didn't know about that, did you?

Admiral Bellinger: I am practically sure, I didn't.

I don't recall any knowledge of it.
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr, Murphy

m'. Murphy: That 18 another of the dispatches in that
pqriod.

Now, there was a confer2nce at whioh time the possibll-
ity of an ailr raid on Oahu or Hawall was disoussed, at whioch
time Captaln McMorris made a certaln statement. That would
be on November 27th or 28th. You were not present at that
conference, were youf?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir,

Mr. Murphy: Admiral, you do belleve that there oould
have been reconnaissance if the command had been lssued to
have 1t, isn't that so?

Admiral Bellinger: Yea_, sir, With the planes we had
theres oould have been reconnalssance.

Mr. Murphy: I would llke to direot your attentlon in
that regard to the testimony of your Chilef of Staff at page
595 of the record of the Court of Inqulry oconducted by of-
fiocere of the Navy., On page 596¢

"Q That 1s a very oclear explanation, However,
will you please answer the question? We will put the
question another way., Were there any planes at Pearl

Harbor which could have been used and were not used for

distance reconnalesamce on the mqrning of Deocember 77

"A Yes, sir, there were planes that oould have

been used had such a search been ordered by nhigher
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1
3 authority.
s "Q How manyof these planes were inthat oategory?
4 "A For an emergency effort, approximately 60 planes
5 could have been made available in four hours or less.
6 "Q Who would have ordered the diatanoe:reooﬁ;aisa
- sance and under whose authority rwould the directive have
8 been made?
9 "A For the full utilization of all ailrorafd, both
+ 10 Army and Navy, available on Oahu, the orders to us would
E 1 have come from the Commander, Naval Base Defense Foroe.
; 12 "Q Wno is thatl?
g 13 | "A The Commandant of the 1l4th Naval Distriot.
g 14 Orders solely for the Navy planes would probably have
i 13 come from the Commander-in-Chief, Paciflo Fleet.
18 l "Q Did you consider in these plans and orders which
17 ' you had that the Cpommander of the Naval Base Defense
18 Foroe was the one who would have originated the 1dea of
19 # distance reconnaissance and would have direoted y cu or
20 il Admiral Bollingor'to have sent planes out on thla mig-
. gt | sion?
- 23 "A I would have assumed it would be the duty of
23 any officer higher in the echelon of command above
24 Admiral Bellinger to have taken acticn on receipt of the
28 1 information indicating that action was ngcesgsary."

“_“lIIlllllllIllllllll-IlllIlllllll!lllIlllllllllllIiIlllIllIllll-IlIl-llIllll-v
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Witness Bellinger

Do you agree with those answers of your Chief of Staff?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir,

Mr. Murphy: Yhat was the name of your Chief of Staff

at that time, Admlral?

Admiral Bellinger: He was Commander Ramsey; Logan C.

Rameey,

Mr, Murphy: Yes., Now I direot your attenticn to the

questions at page 597 of the same record, quesgtion 110:

9416

Questions by: Mr., Murphy

"Q You stated that in Yyour opinion there might be

or could be an air attack on Oghu,

from what direction the air attack would come or the

most probable direotion?

"A Yes, 8ir, we had., Ve had great disoussions on

it, and in view of the prevailing wind conditions and

Had you ever thought

the presence of outlying islands and other faotors, we

had decided the northwest gsotor was the most likely

line of approach, and in our drille the squadion in the

highest degree of readiness was always ordered to take

up that s8ctor from 315 to 00,

"Then, if you, with yocur limited number of planes,
had sent out distance reconnalssance, you would have

sent them to the northwest sector so asg to cover that

gector?

" For any single day, yes, sir,"
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Witness Bellinger

Question 115¢ "why d4id you select that seotor?

WA "Beoause we had always declded that wes the moat

1ikely directicn of approach,

nQ But that sector was not based on the sighting
of any Japanese planes?

"A No, sir, it wae in acocordance with our estimate
and preconceived ldeas. We always selected that sector,
315 to 00, as the first sector. The gecond sector was
from 315 to around 270, We placed other secto»s in thelr
relative i1dea of importance."
I take it you agree with that statement or teatimony be-

cause it 1s substantially what you yourself have stated,

Admiral Bellinger: I doo
Mr. Murphy: I would now like to refer to page 578 of the

same record and the same witness, question 24t

"arriving at this estimate, did you conslder any
particular nation" -- he was speaking of the Martin-
Bellinger report -- "did you oconslder any partioulqy na-
tion, or was thls Jjust a generality for any country --
any enemy which might attack without a declaration of
war?

"pA Tt was obviously and solely Japan, I use the

| pre-war phraseology intentionally 1n trying to get my-

gelf into a ora-war frame of mind,

1




: Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Murphy
2 J "Q Then ycur oonclusion was that Af any attaok
3 at all were made on Oahu 1t would be by air and not by
4 some other means? |
8 "A Thst 18 correot,
6 | "Q At the time you made this estimate of the
7 situation, did you oconolude from the international situ-
8 ation as 1t oi_tiated on that date, that Japan would at-
0 tack the United States?
3 10 nga It 1s impossible for me to say at this late
E i1 dave, but I do resall having mentioned to Admiral Bel-
? 12 linger, half in earnest and half in pure speoulation,
é 13 - that it was my belief that 1f the Japanese did attack us
g 14 by an air raid, that the attack would probably ocome on
z 13 Christmas Eve or New Year'sa Day."
19 Of course, that was Just dlscusslon over the tuble I
17 assume, but the fact is, Admiral, that if you had beenat a
18 conferencs, - and now I am taking you back before December
19 | 7th. - and the discussion were to wme up as to the possl-
20 || bility of an attack on Pearl Harbor, would 1t not have been
2t || your opinion at that conference, bélng an airman, that the

&3 most likely danger was alir rather than submarine?
23 Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir, that was my estlmate
24 throughout.

33 Mr. Murphy: In other words, at the oconferences that were
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr, Murphy

held Rear Adimiral Davis was not volcling too much of an opin-

ion or asked for too many opinions anl you were not consulteAd
at all, the opinion of those at the aonference was that there
would be an atta& on Hawalil but it would be a mass aubmaflne
attack an1 I take 1t you would have Aiffered with-tha‘c. You

felt 1t would oome from the ailr?

Admiral Bellinger: The attack most easlly for the Japan-
ese to make woull bema subrarine attack ani a general subrar-
ine renace in and arouni the Pearl Harb or area. If they ha4
contemrplated an attack on Pearl Harbor, why, I certalnly |
thought it would be gir, an air attack. We suspeoted sub-
marines to be out in the area, in the operating area; for
gsore tire. There were many contacts, souni contacts that were
investigatei bu{: 1411 not conoclusively show any 1efinlite re-
sults, but there was a suspicion that thelr subrarines were
about, even before Decerber the 7th,

Mr, Murohy: A4driral, were you at any time between the lst
of Decerber and the 7th of Decerber acquainted with the f aot
that there was somre 1efinite uncertalnty as to where the
Japanese ¢ arrilers were?

Adriral Bellinger: No, sir,

Mr. Murphy: So that between Noverber 27th ani Decerler

7th you yourself or no one unier you oriered any chanze in

the s tatug of slert of the planes wnise» your ccrrani, isn't

L]
- Ll
L]
. L
& " - &
. ¥

_-—--..:I-_—-—- T — - —— T T LT R - e o .




13

1%

< 'Q THOLODNIHBYM INnYd % S LA

{3

it
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that right?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir,

Mr. Muvrphy: You mean 1t 1s right?

Adriral Bellinger: I mean the schedule was being carrien
out, to the ‘;Jeat of my knowledge, in the activities connected
with Fleet tactics that I referred to before. Theremay have
been certaln changes so far as resiiness mie in those squal-
rons anl connectel in that exerclse, but not in connection
with any security.

Mr. Murphy: I woulAd like to now refer, Adriral, to page
583 of the Naval Court of Inquiry, question 44, to your Onief
of Staff, (Reading)

"Q With the combined Navy-Army alrcraft that were
avallable for operation between 27 Noverber ani 7 December
1941, coull you have complied with a Aireotive to mniuct
a long-range reconnailssance Through 360 4degrees?

"A, No. Using the most economical alroraft type
of search that we could 1evise, a slngle plane going to
700 miles would only coever a gector of 8 1egrees. There-
fore, with 66 planes, only 50 per cent of which could be
usel continuously from g maintenaqoe ani pilot fatigue

stanipoint, only 264 Adegrees couldl be cove rel 1aily.

360 1egrees could be covered only cne 1ay, possibly only

- T

two 1ays as an emargency measure, but it could not be
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Witness Bellinger Questions by Mr. Marphy

raintainel. It would only cover about three-quarters of
the oirole 1ay in ani 1ay out until the exhaustion point
from not only of personnel but fror the materiel stani-
point as well was reachedl. The exhaustion period woulA
have been reached in materiel before it was reached in
personnel. As nearly as I ocould estimate the situation and
in view of our alrost total la& of spare parts for the
PBY-5 planes, I believe that three weeks of intensive
1ally Bearohes would have been approxirately a 75 per ocent
reduction in material readiness of the entire outfit
anl we would have been placing planes out of ocomrission
ani robbing ther for spare pavté to keep other planes go-
ing. The pllots, I believe, could haw kept going ap-
proxirately a six week perictl, but at the end of that time
they woulAd have all required a protractel rest period."
I take 1t you agree with that?
Alrliral Bellinger: In general, yes. I think very prob-
ably the pllots ocould not have kept up that long. That 1is
at least a fou::;teen T0 a sixteen hour flight. We have on oc-
caslons, particularly in the Battle of Miiway I think, put
pllote on patrol covering longer periods of patrol for con.-
secutive 1ays and any time I know of they were practiocally
on their last legs at the eni of 1t.,

Mr. Murphy: Adriml, under the nlan, the Martin-Bellinger




089

10

13

14

2 ' 'NOLDNIHEBYM "INVYd W QuVYM

16

17

19

20

a3

24

— e ———— e i — T i

9k22
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plan, in order for you to have any authority 1t was necessary
for an eme rgency to arise. That 1s right, 1sn't 1t?

AArivral Bellinger: Yes, sir. It had1 to be apparent.

Mr. Murphy: Right, It would be rather Aifflcult for you

who was to be apprised of the existence of an eme rgenoy to

recognize the existence of one 1f you 111 not have this 1in-

forration, 1sn't that right?

Airiral Bellinger: Yes, s8ir.

Mr. Murphy: Now, then, on page 584 the question was
askel of your Chlef of Staff:

"Ha41 you heard anything gbout an Arey coniition of
reailinese Adesignel to prevent sabotage?

"A I hal heardi indiirectly aniunoffiolally of varl-
ous rurors of atterpted sabotaze anil counter measures
agalnst sabotagze, none of which appearedl at the time to
be of great importance."

My question to you is 114 you know what type of alert

the Avrry was on?

Adriral Bellinger: I 4don't thirik g0, I knew that at
gore stage of events at that tire there was a great 1eal of
thought given to sabotage. I ar not suvre whether I knew that
they were in a sabotage alert or not, but I 40 know that the

subjeot was a live subjeot an1 I hai Aone sowething about 1t

in ry force ani various other naval forces were taklng aotlon
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of that kind1 ani whether I knew the Arpy was actually in 1t
or not I ar not sure.

Mr. Murphy: Your Chief of Staff, of course, had no wore
inforration about these war warning mressazes than you had, 4114
he?

Adriral Bellinger: No, 8ir. I questioned hir on that.

Mr, Hurpﬁy: You also, I take it, Adriral, hal no infor-
ration whatsoever to the effect that the Japanese were 1e-
stroying their codee andi thelr systems?

Adrirgl Bellinger: No, 8ir, I knew nothing of that.

Mr. Murphy: Nor anylinformation about the Japanese consul
at Honolulu 4destroying sore of his systers or all of ther, I

take 1it?

Adriral Bellinger: No, sir, I 111 not know that.
Benator Lucas: Will the Congressran ylelAl?

Mr. Murphy: Yes.

Senator Lucas:; With respeoct to your neot knowing the Arny
wag alerted to easbotage, 111 you have occasion to see on the
Saturiay before the Suniay morning how the Arpry planes wervre
lined up on their fi?liﬂ from wing tip to wing tip?

Airiral Bellinger: No, sir. I was in bed rost of Satur-

18y .

Senator Lucas: Oh, yes, that 1s right. An1 yom 114 not

receive any inforwetlion frow anyone thet the Arry was alertefd

m.?mh&ﬁs“ £k
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to s abotage?

Alriral Bellinger: Not that I can say definitely. I
ray have known it; I ar not sure.

Mr. Murphy: Are you through, Senator?

Sengtor Lucas: ' Yes.

Mr. Murphy: I would like also to refer to page 99 of the
Hart inquiry, Rear Adriral Davis speaking:

"Although I 1141 not feel that I had suffioclent in-
formatlon as to the actual situatlon to uniertake to
questlon the Cormanier-in-Chief's policy as 7 Deoember
approachedl I was concernei about the zeneral situation
yith respeot to our outlylng islandis. For this reason I
stressedl the necessity for providiing some forr of air
protection at Wake ani Midiway, which it woulAd have been
too late to attempt after actual emergency hadl arigen.
Action was finally taken in this connection ani that is
why the attack on 7 Becerber found the ENTERPRISE task
force on 1ts way back, having landed Marine fighting
planes at Wake, an1 the LEXINGTON task foroce on its way
to lani Marine aircraft at MidAway."

Now, the questlion was askedl of Adriral Davis, re-

- ferring to the Martin Bellinger vreport, a question on page 99:

I

"Did you have that estimrate at all in rind Auring

The days- which 121 up to 7?7 Decembert
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_ 2 "A I AA.
. 3 "Q But I unierstand, from your testirony, that you
4 raie no particular estirate yourseelf along that same
3 line, formal or otherwilse?
6 "A No, slr, 1%t was not that I rmale no estimate, or
7 111 not consider 1t; 1t was rather that this, like all
8 of the other very comprehensive and1 thorough preparatory
1] plans that were maie, was contingent, as to its being
g 10 placed in effeot, on prior 1eclsion that the situation
g 11 Justified taking up what might be called a 1efensive 1e-
' E 12 | ployrent. As to whether or not 1t should, at any given
% 13 | point, have been taken up, I necessarily oconsidierel that
§ 14 the Comrander-in-Chief's eatimate was final.
: 15 *Q AnA your aﬂﬁoe on the point was not askeA?
16 | "A No, sir.
7 "Q Di1 you see the Navy Departrent's dispatech of
; 18 27 Noverber, the one whioch has core to be known as the
19 J war warning (indicating Exhibit 8)1
20 h “No, slr.
‘ Ll "Q You never saw it prior to 7 Decemrber?
ee "A No, sir,
23 "Q Adrdral, 111 I undierstani you correotly earlier
23 in your testirony to say that in your opinion a compre-
23 henelve alr search couldl have been carfriefl on at that time?
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: Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Murphy
2 "A Yes, it ocoulAi,
3 "Q Would you elaborate on that jJust a little bit, ae
2 to how a 360 1egree Alstant reconnalssance could have been
5 carried on with the raterlial at hani at that tire?
6 "A There were not enough planes and pilote to estab-
7 'I 1ish ani raintain a long-range, 360 A1egree search indefin-
8 1tely, or even for more than a limritel tire. There were,
9 | however, enough to approximate this by using relatively
g 10 short-range planes in the least Aangerous sectors, and by
g i | obtalning some asslstance from avallable Arry alrcraft,
E 12 80 that I think 1t could have been uniertaken, hal it been
2 13 . consliered essential, on the basis that reenforcements
§ 14 ooull have arriveil before personnel ani materlel fatigue
: 3 set in. Unless reenforcerents arrived, it could not have
16 been maintalined.
7 "Q You may proceedl to the written question glven you,
13 passing on to the Army part.
19 "A Prior to 7 Decerber I hal relatively little Ade-
20 talledl information regariing the Arry Interoceptor Comrani.
L I knew approxir;'ately the nurbers and types animry recollec-
83 tion 1g that they had about 170 P-36's, P—SQ'B, ani
23 P-40fg, of which the greater nurber were P-36's ani
24 | P~-397g. Juiged by molern war standaris, there were

29 enough alir flelds %o operate tham, tut not enough to
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Witness Bellinger Questione by: Mr. Murphy

proviie adlequate Alspersal ani protection, nor were re-

vetmrentes an"l"uopevsal runways providied at the various

fieldls."

In that connection, Adriral, as I unierstani your
testirony you knew that the Interoceptor Cormand was not pro-
perly funotioning, or not? Do you récall what your s tate
of mind was before Decerber 7th?

Adrlral Bellinger: It 1s my. unierstaniing that it was not
functioning as a regular agency.

Mr. Murphys You say what?

Adriral Bellinger: Thet i1t was not funotloning as a
regular continuous agenocy.

Mr. Murphy: Adriral Kiprrel testiflied that radar would
give hir coverage, at one tire in one hearing, of two hunireA
riles ani in this hearing of one hunired milea,- Di1 you 80
unierstani 1t7

Adriral Bellinzer: No, sir. I 4i1 not expeot 1t to be

| that effeoctive. As a matter of faoct, it was not that effeotive

to the fullest extent ae{reml months after Decerber the 7th,
Mr, Murphy: Now, in connection with that ani in oTro-

boration of your feeling about it in connection with Adrlral

Kirrel's testimony, his ailrran saldl at page 100:'..,

.
]
L]

"I 4441 not feel, however, that it was yet ready for

full effeotive erployrent.®
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. 2 That 1s A1riral Davis speaking.
3 | Now, what was your inforration as to the ability of the
4 Arry to partloipate in or ocooperate with you by way of help
8 in the event you called on ther? D14 you f eel the fliers
6 were competent?
7 Adrliral Bellinger: Fromr my inforration from General
8 Martin, he hail 4ifficulty in getting enough competent orews,
0 alr oorbat crews to man the planes he had and he w as also
§ 10 | confronted with a Job of t raining personnel to man B-17's
E it for further transfer to the Philippines. I know of this only
. i 13 because of oconversations with Gene ml Martin, so tha I know
% 13 that he had problers of t hat nature which were of consider-
§ 1% able importance.
0
o 15 | Mr. Murphy: Now I would like to Aireot your attention
18 | to page 44 of the Hart inquiry, to the testirony of Vice
17 Adriral Srith. Qne‘afion 8l%
18 : "What 10 you know about their combat effiolenoy,
i9 { particularly as regaris personnel?
.20 | "Well, we 114n't have a very high regard for it.
. e That was based upon our observations Auring Fleet Oper-
a3 ations, when their Flying Fortresses woull come over at
23 alrost smoke—lataok level, and1 showei an utter 4lsregarai
24

for possible anti-alroraft fire. In the operations be-

|
2 tween our planes ani theirs, our aviators, possibly

i

L |
"
— e —— — T — | —
i * '
L]
-
]
[
- e » —
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr, Murphy

prejuilced, expressed the opinion that they were not very
goo1. "
I was woniering 1f that feeling prevailed so that
it would prevent calling on the Armry to help in reconnalssance.
It ocertainly 414 not with you, 111 1t? .

Adriral Bellinger: I knew that reconnailssance requires
gspeclal tralning, 1t requires tvaininé which the Army had not
utlllized very much because 1t was not consiiered part of the
Job that they were going to 10; at least, they had not
unier taken it. Therefore, I 111 not think that the Army ooulA
10 very ruch in asslstinz in long-range recornalssance. It
took sore time after Decerber the 7th for ther to train their
crews sufficlently to be really effeotive. That was shown
up actually after Decerber the 7th, when they 414 assist in
the reconnalssance around Oghu.

Mr. Murphy: D14 you know, Adriral, that when Kurusu was
on his way to the States to participate in the conferences
in Washington that his plane lanieil at Mliway?

Adriral Bellingzer: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: D14 you belleve that the plane had vreally
broken 4down?

Aiqiﬂal Bellinger: I qon't know, but I was Alrected to
have two planes to bring himr to Oshu in case the Pan-Arerican

pilane was not rade reasiy in time.
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr., Murphy

Mr. Murphy: You 1eocidiel to let hir walt there, 4i4n't
you? You 411 not use the plares, 111 you?
Adriral Bellinger: No, sir. He care finally by Pan-

Arerican-.
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AL~1
1
Mr. Murphy: At any rate, on his way to America
2 _
. Kurusu's plane appeared apparently to be disabled and did
3 | |

1end at Midway for some time, dild it not?

4
Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir. I have been told Kurusu
5 |
vas kept in the hotel there, and T have also been told that
e
the Marine guard, every time they moved, vent around the
7
building three times.
8
Mr. Murphy: Did you have called to your attention,
)
Agmiral, the fact that the Army, on November 5, had a new
g7 : did
& L Operating Procedure Order? Admiral Kimmel apparently
o
11
. ; not ¥now of it and I was wondering if you did.
G
r 19
g Admiral Bellinger: The one with reference to 1, 2
2 13
§ and 3 alerts?
o 14
“
G Mr. Murphy: Yes.
o 15
Admiral Bellinger: No, sir, I do not think I knew
16
of that, or the details of it. I would not normally know
17
of the details of it, so I do not think I did know of it.
18 ‘
Mr. Murphy: For a long time the Army had only one
19
kind of an alert, and then they had three alerts and they
20 ‘
sent copies to the Navy?
21
. -+ Admiral Bellinger: I do not think they sent me &
22
copy. If I knew about it 1t was from conversation with
23
General Martin.
24
Mr. Murphy: There hes been some testimony here that
&5 ||
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Murphy

The

. the Japanese knew about the workings of our radars.
| fact is that the radar at the Opana Station did detect the
; Japanese at distances of 132 miles. If the Japcnese were

|| aware of our radar functioning that morning, would they

- have been at & sufficient height in the air for radar to

have detected them at 132 miles?

Admiral Bellinger: The high altitude bombing planes --

- and they were I assume between 8 and 10 thousand feet when

they made thelr attack -- probably would have been detected.

The torpedo planes, according to my information, assembled

at very low altitudes and made thelr approach at a very

— o — ——

| low altitude, and they probably would not have been detected
that far by radar.
| Mr. Marphy: I would like to just ask one quéstion.

' Do we have avallable any Navy exhibit showing the damage

to the ARIZOHA? I understood you to say this morn

)

morning that

| the damage to the ARIZONA was rrom torpedoes .

Admiral Belli.n'ger: This was the first attack on the

ARIZONA, and I assume tﬁat there vwere three torpedoes that

hit the ARIZONA, merely from seeing these three planes pass

Mr. Murphy: I just wanted to check it.

Admiral Bellinger: And immediately afterward e

. over the ARIZONA.
|
|
!
|

tremendous explosion.
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Murphy

Mr. Murphy: I just wanted to check with the actual
records so we will have it straight. I believe there were
some bombs.

Admiral Bellinger: There may have been bombs in addi-
tion.

Mr. Murphy: I do not know. Do you have that, Counsel?

Let me ask two other questions, Admirsl. You did
prepare, dild you not, a report, which is in the record as
Exhiblt No. 120, dated December 19, 1941, a memorandum for
Information for Admiral XKimmel?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir, I have it right here.

Mr. Murphy: Did you prepare that report then at the
request of Admiral Kimmel, as to what occurred on December T
and lmmediately thereafter?

Admiral Bellinger: I am not sure whether it was mede
at his request or not, but I made it up for hinm.

Mr. Murphy: And that was your judgment, as of that
date, as to what actually occurred at that time?

Admirel Bellinger: Yes, sir, that was the situation
28 I knew about it on that day.

Mr. Murphy: Now, Admiral, in regard to the ARIZONA,
the Navy report is that she was hit by one or more aircraft
torpedoes and about 8 heavy bombs.

i & hav_e no other questions.




AL-%4

o434
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(8) 2 The Chairman: Senator Ferguson.
3 The Senator indicates that he is willing to yield to
4 Congressman Keefe.
5 Senator Ferguson: I am willing to yield to Congressman
| 8 Keefe. He is always on the enﬁ. .
7 The Chairman: Congressman, the Chair takes great
- 8 pleasure 1n recognizing you.
o Senator Lucas: I want to remind the Congressman it is
10 a quarter of 4,
; 11 Mr. Keefe: Do I understand this is just a temporary
. g 12 || yielding or does that end the examination?
s 13 | The Cheirman: No, no, I cannot guarentee anything
g 14 I of that kind. c
E 15 : Senator Ferguson: I will take what is left.
e I Mr. Keefe: iell, you can take 1t all, because 1t will
17 || be very brief.
i 1 Admiral, I listened carefully to your testimony and I

18 am interested in certain ultimate facts. From listening

20 || to your testimony I gained certain impressions, and I want

21 to ascertain whether they are in accord with what you have
. 22 testified.

You were a Task Force Commander prior to December 7,

24 in charge of the reconnaissance planes, is that right?

25 Agmiral Bellinger: They were called patrol planes.




AL-5 9435
Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Keefe

Mr. Keefe: We will call them patrol planes, then.
Admiral Bellinger: We expected to use them for anything

and everything we could.

Mr. Keefe; As such you were not a member of the staff
of the Commander in Chief, Admiral Kimmel?
Admiral Bellinger: I was not a member of his staff.

Mr. Keefe: And as such you were not given information

8
. as to the so-called warning messages that were sent to
a Admiral Kimmel from Washington?
ST Admiral Bellinger: I was not given those wernings, no, sir.
E o Mr. Keefe: And you had no information concerning those
. i 13 | until after the attack?
§ 14 l Admiral Bellinger: Not until after the attack.
% 15 | Mr. Keefe: Am 1 correct in the assumption that you
0 16 || had sufficient planes at Pearl Harbor on December 7, and
17 I prior thereto, for a period of at least a week, to have
a || enabled you to conduct long-range reconnaissance to the
19 | north for a period of a week?
Gk Admiral Bellinger: I would say "yes" to that question.
21 Mr. Keefe: I understand that you, yourself, as a
. 22 Task Force Commander, would not put into effect the pro-
aa l visions of the Martin-Bellinger plan for long-range re-
24 connaissance without an order from the Commander in Chief,

except in case of an emergency. Is that your testimony?

es
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Keefe

Adm:l.ra_.l Bellinger: That is correct.
Mr. Keefe: Therefore, do I understand your testimony

to be that the reason there was no long-range reconnaissance
in the sector to the north in the week preceding Pearl Ha.rb;)r
is because you had received no order from the Commander in
Chief to effect or carry out such reconnalssance?
Admiral Bellinger: That 1s correct.
Mr. Keefe: I understand your testimony also to be =-
and you may correct me if I am in error -~ that as an air
man familiar with the situation in Hawali you were in agree-
ment with Admiral Devis that the greatest possibillity of
a successful alr attack lay in an attack coming in from the
sector to the north because of the prevalling wind condi-
tions, is that right?
- Admiral Bellinger: That 1s practically correct, yes, sir.
You have got to utilize the conditions as you find them at
the time when you meke the attack, and the prevailing wind
was normally about 65 or 70 degrees coming from that direction.
Mr. Reefe: I understand your testimony to be in order
to recapture your planes you have to head into the wind.
Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Mr. Keefe: So if planes were launched down wind --

Admiral Bellinger: (Interposing) Into the wind.

Mr. Keefe; They were launched into ths wind?
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Admiral Bellinger: Into the wind.

. Mr. Keefe: Now when they leave the carrier they would
come down wind, would they not? I am not an air expert,
but I have been following your testimony. When they come
back on to the carrier they have to land into the wind,
is that correct, or am I in error?

Admiral Bellinger: They take off and land with the

carrier heading into the wind.

Mr. Keefe: Then the carrier turns around when they

10
l take off to head into the wind?

11

o Admiral Bellinger: Yes.

1 Mr. Keefe: If the prevalling wind is down toward Oahu

14

. and they are assembled up to the northwest, then when they

s take off they take off into the wind and circle and come

.0 .MOTOMIHZAW . JUAS 8 OQRAW

—_
—

5 down; 1s that right?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes.

17

3 Mr. Keefe: So the best opportunity to get away 1s

A vhen the ocarriers are headed out away from Oahu and the

o planes can be recaptured by the carrier heading right into

= the wind?

@ 2 I Admirsel Bellinger: Yes, sir.

o1 Mr. Keefe: Is that right?

-+ Admiral Bellinger: 7Yes, sir.

5 Mr. Keefe: That 1s, as I understood, your plan set out
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Keefe

4n the Martin-Bellinger report. You set that out, did you not?
Admiral Bellinger: No, sir, that 1is not in that report.
Mr. Keefe; Well, I got it from some place else. 1
would not be a;zrprised 1f I misunderstood what the report
might be. At any rate, whether it is in the report or whether
it is not, that is a fact, isn't 1t?
Agmirel Bellinger: That is a fact, yes, sir.
Mr. Keefe: You do not make any camplaint today because
you were not made aware of the messages that were recelved
by the Commender in Chief, do you, Admiral?
Admiral Bellinger: No, sir.
Mr. Keefe: My recollection of this war warning message
:s that at the end an injunction was laild upon the Commander
in Chief to distributg it only to certain restricted essential
officers. Do you remember that?
Admiral Bellinger: ©No, sir, I think 1T was left to
wis own discretion, but I know nothing about that.
Mr. Keefe: 1Isn't that in the record? I have forgotten.
Admiral Bellinger: I think you are correct on some
messages, but I am not familiar with them exzough to answver.
Mr. Keefe: I guess that is right. That would be
the Army message. That was General Short.
Then am I to see this picture from your testimony to

the effect that here is & task force commender in commend of
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patrol planes who isn't given any information at all

LY

as to wvhat is going on in the international situation and

lv in the relations with Japan except what you got from the
newspapers, perhaps, while you were lying sick in bed four

or five days before the 7Tth of December; that no long-distance

. reconnaissance is ordered at all, some people claiming that
*.l | that could not be effected because of lack of personnel and
| lack of planes, but you are of the opinion that 1f there
+nd been & utilization of the patrol planes that were avall-

10

. able it could have been carried on for at least a week .

Admiral Bellinger: I think it could have, yes, sir.

Mr. Keefe: And effectively covered the arc from which

13

e ;rou,. as an Air Force Commander, at all times belleved an air

attack on Hawaii would come. Do I so aunderstend it to be

D O 'NOLDNIHSYM "TNvd ¥ AQavM

v your testimony?

| o Admiral Bellinger: It could have covered that partl-

gular arc, yes, sir.

i Mr. Keefe: Nerrowing this matter down, if I interpret

o4 your testimony correctly -- and if I am in error you can

5 challenge me, Admiral -- the failure to conduct a long-rangse

-
|

23

weconnaissance which was, under the circumstances existant
on December 7 at Pearl Harbor, practically the only way in

% which an attacking force of carriers could be dlscovered,

24

rested entirely with the Commender Iin Chief and his staff,




(10)

D .0 .MOTRUIHZAW . JUAYT 8 QRAW

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

3

o440

Witness Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Keefe

| Senate®r Ferguson
and until an order came from the Commander in Chief you
would not, as a Task -Foroa Commender, control the planes
to effect such reconnaissance, 1is that correct?

Admiral Bellinger: That is correct.

Mr. Keefe: That 1s all.

The Chairman: Senator Ferguson.

Senator Ferguson: Admiral, did you have & conversa-
+ion with Admiral Smith in relation to the Kurusu plane
at Midway?

Admiral Bellinger: I am not sure whether it was Admiral
Smith or who it was. I got the message from someone, from
rhe Commender in Chief, Pacific, to have two planes out
~here in case they were needed.

Senator Ferguson: Let me refresh your memory. Admiral
Smith was asked this question on page 52 of the Hart Board,
No. 14T:

"Phis particular dispatch (indicating Exhibit 8) is
different from all other warnings recelved previously in
that the words ‘war warning?! were used. What was your own
reaction to those particular words?"

He answers this way:

"My reaction was we knew that negotlations were still

going on; Mr. Kurusu had floﬁn through a few days before;

we were in great doubt as to what was happening. Mr.
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| RKurusu's plane broke down in Midway. Admiral Bellinger

called up at night and asked permission to fly him on in

_” an PBY, and I said 'No, it may be that the plane was told

| by the administration to break down. They know more wvhatis
going on than we do. Let him stay there.'"

Did you have a conversation like that with Admiral
Smith?
I Admiral Bellinger: I do not remember that, no, sir.

1 remember & conversation with reference to Kurusu and with
»aference to bringing him from Midwa:y to Pearl. I do not
remember that any of my organization suggested 1t in any
way.

Now in connection with the two planes standing by to
bring him, one belng &an escort plane, as I remember nov,
they were sent out there to stand by to bring him back.
The question was evidently whether to bring him or let him
wait for the Pan-American plane which appeared to be about
to be fixed.

Senator Ferguson: Why were you concerned about bringing
nim? Why did you want to get him to Washington?

Agmiral Bellinger: I was not concerned about him at all,
except I was told by the Commander in Chief, as I remember

aow, to furnish these planes to bring him. The questlon

yas whether thoy should sit there wailting for him to make
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Senator Ferguson

up his mind and wait for the Pan-American, or to bring him
right away. I had no reason to get him to Honolulu or any-
where.

Senator Ferguson: At least you did not fly the PBY?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Now you have in your statement here
something that I would like to have cleared up. You Bay:

"As pointed out in the Martin-Bellinger estimate, the
problem of when to place the Naval Base Defense Alr Force
in & functioning status resolved itself into one of timing
with respect to the current status of our relations with
Japan, and required specific information as to the probabllity
of an alr attack within rather narrow time limits.”

Now what do you mean by "rather narrow time limits"?

Admiral Bellinger: For instance, the question comes
up now could we have covered a sector or could we have
covered 360 deprees; "for how long could you cover 360 degrees,
and for how long could you cover & sector of about 90 degrees 29
The 9n1y definite assurance of early information of an
air attack is by covering 360 degrees , and -~

Senator Ferguson: Now take that answer --

The Chairman: I do not think he finished his answer,

Senator.

Senator Ferguson: Did you want to go on?

-
ooy = T — .
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Senator Ferguson

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: All right.

Admiral Bellinger: So that if you were going to cover
360 degrees it is going to come down to & questlon of a
very few days. If it 1s going to come to the question of
a sector of 90 degrees even, that 1s going to cause a re-
duction in your forces sooner or later.

Senator Ferguson: Isn't 1t better, in case of an anti-
cipated attack, to use what you have even though you are
10t able to use the full 360 degrees?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir, that is perfectly true.

Senator Ferguson; Then why consider the question of

360 degrees when we did not have enough planes for 360 degrees?

Admiral Bellinger: In an estimate of the situation
vou are trying to work this out so as to wveigh all the
situations. 360 degrees .on an island 1s the only way you
san make sure that there is not a force coming in. Actually
for months after Pearl Harbor, December 7, we endeavored
to have 360 degrees covered from Oahu.

Senator Ferguson:; Is this the trouble, that we were
trying to work from & war plan which said that the absolute
wvay was to cover 360 degrees and if we could not work from
the war plan we were not going to work at all?

Admiral Bellinger: Oh, no, sir, that is not the ldea.
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Witness Bellinger - Questions by: Senator Ferguson

The estimate can only figure on & basis of 360 degrees,
otherwise where is the attack going to come from? If you
do not put the 360 degrees in what are you going to put in?
The idea 1s to stop the raild.

Senator Ferguson: Isn’t it a question of trying to
figure out where he may come from? 1Isn't that part of your
Intelligence system?

Admiral Bellinger: That is part of it, and that was
the plan as devolved from this estimate later with reference
to where we put the first avellable planes, and if we had
no more, why, that was all.

Senator Ferguson: Now did you consider in any plan
that if you did not have enough planes for 360 degrees --
and we were in that condition up to the time we were going
to war -- that you would use the planes that you did have?
Did we have any war plan on such a basis?

Admiral Bellinger: The war plans called for planes

to be on Wake, Midway, Palmyra, Johnston, and Oeshu.

Senator Ferguson: On Oahu?

Admiral Bellinger: 7Yes.

Senator Ferguson: Did you have any war plan that
called for anything less, on long-distance reconnaissance,

than 360 degrees, the entire circle?

Admiral Bellinger: Why, certainly. The Operating Plan
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Senator Ferguson

called for planes as they were avallable.

Senator Ferguson: Well, now, did you have a plan that
said if war was imminent you would conduct a reconnalssance
in the segment north, into the vacant sea?

Admiral Bellinger: I am not sure. I haven'!t a copy
of this latest subsidiary plan that was gotten out over my
signature. I do not know whether that is available or not.
I was discussing the other dey with ny Operations Officer
if he remembered whether or not that northwast sector was
put down in that pla.n as a vital sector. He thought it was.
I am not sure. 'I'hat wes & question in our minds anyvay,
if not definitely on paper.

Senator Ferguson: Now isn’t this true, that your plan
with General Martin covered a 360 reconnaissance?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: And it did not cover any partioular
segment in case you did not have enough to go on 360 degrees?

Admiral Bellinger: Well, that is down in black and
white. If you have got something and haven'’t got enough
you will do what you can with what you have got.

Senator Ferguson: All right. Did you have a plan to
do vhat you could with what you had?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir, that 1s exactly vhat I

read out this morning. The {irst sector was from north around
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Senator Fergusaon

to west to be covered by the first availlable planes.

Senator Ferguson: All right. Then I will ask you this:
If you did not know where these carriers were, why did not
you send your planes up in that directlon,with the first
planes that you got off the ground, to locate these carriers?

Admirel Bellinger: On December7?

Senator Ferguson: Yes.

Adn;iral Bellinger: That is what wé.a done -

Senator Ferguson: Will you get me the evidence that
you sent them up north? You sent one up north.

Admiral Bellinger: It is in my statement thls moranlung,
I thought very clearly.

Senator Ferguson: Will you tell us what time you sent
them up there, up to the north?

Admiral Bellinger: The three patrol planes 14 p-1, 2
and 3 on early morning security search were asslgned &a
search sector between north and northwest. Those were the
first ones avallable.

Senator Ferguson: Wha:t time was that?

Admiral Bellinger: That was about 8:00 o’clock, or
8:05 when they got the message, according to my information.

Senator Ferguson: 8:05, and the attack took place
at 7:55.

Admiral Belliager: Now There is a 1ittle hitch In
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that.

Senator Ferguson: I want to get the hitech out of 1it.
Let us know vhat happened.

Admiral Bellinger: These three planes were assigned
this north to northwest sector and proceeded on search.
After the first phase of the attack Patrol Wing one reported
two planes at Kaneohe availlable for immediate operation and
wes directed to send these two planes on & northwvesterly
sector.

Senator Ferguson: That is another search?

Admiral Bellinger: That is another besides those three?

Senator Ferguson: 7Yes.

Admiral Bellinger: One second. Before these could
be dispatched another Japanese attack put them out of
commission.

Senator Ferguson: Yes.

Admiral Bellinger: At about the same time communications
betveen Keneohe and Pearl were lmocked out. Patrol Wing One
on own initiative diverted the two planes then on that
northerly sector, that is the 1 and 3, to cover a westerly
sector because of the loss of the tﬁo planes originally
detailed. I

Senator Ferguson: All right.

Admiral Bellinger: In an effort to comply with instructions | |

s TN, —
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Senator Ferguson:; Then they violated the war plan

y | that you and Martin had drawn up, because your first one
: | wvas to be to the north?
~ Admiral Bellinger: No, sir. They may have violated
it but not with the idea of violating, because they were
: not controlling the plan. They were carrying out orders
from the Patrol Wing to headquarters.
: Senator Ferguson: But the headquarters policy was to
: | send them in another directlon. How do you account for
::E :! ‘ the fact, if this map is correct, of these carriers, six
; e é of them, and their task force, as being 200 miles north
; s i of Hawail, if you had these planes and if you dld have them
E i E sent up there, that you did not see these carriers?
i ¥ " T think from the data we have now they were 200 miles
¥ out, that is where they were stationed when their planes
| Ttook off,
ir ,
W { Admiral Bellinger: This diversion of those two planes
B { removed two planes from the sector where the Japanese task
= { force was lster determined to be near.
2 | Senator Ferguson: Could I have that answer read?
¢ J (The answer was read by the reporter.)
33
24
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Senator Ferguson: Do I understand that someone at
headquarters diverted the two planes and that if they
hadn’t been diverted, they would have located the task
force? S

Admiral Bellinger: I wouldn't say they would have,
but it was in that area.

Senator Ferguson: Yes,

Adpiral Bellinger: Yes.

Senator Ferguson: Now, who was the man that diverted
those two plan;s?

Admiral Beilinger: The Patrol Wing One organization.

Senator Ferguson: What?

Admiral Bellinger: Over KanPOhe.

Senator Ferguson: What about the one plane that kept
going up, how do you account for not seeing those planes
going back to the carrier and landing?

Admiral Bellinger: They didn't see 1t go.

Senator Ferguson: Well, did you ever see thls radar

chart, where these planes came down and they caught them

at 302, and they came straight down, and we found planes

going stralight back to the north?
Admiral Bellinger: No, sir, I never saw that before.
Senator Ferguson: Well -

Admiral Bellinger: I would like to elaborate on a

R R R T, N
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Witness Bellinger
question of this morning, if I may, in connection with
this general subject.

' I understand that my Operations Officer! Captain
Ramsey, made a statement that he had telephoned énd he
thought I had telephoned to the Apmy on December 7 with
reference to the radar detection on those planes going
north after thcj had left.

Now, in the plan for the carrying out of this Naval
Base Defense Air Force in the event of a rald, there were
planes assigned by the Army to follow the carrier planes
back with the idea that this radar existed at this time,
vhich it didn't, when this was made out. And so I was
interested in trying to find out where these planes went
to.

Commander Ramsey was also,

He says I telephoned over to Army headquarters to
find out about it. I don't know whdgher I did or not., I
don't remember doing it now, but I did ask him questions
to find out where they went. We did not get information
from the radar at that time that planes went north to the
carrier,

Senator Ferguson: Did you have any communication,

any means of communication to the radar station?

Admiral Bellinger: Only through the Army.
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Senator Ferguson: Only through the Army?

Admiral Bgllingem Yes,

Senator Ferguson: You had to go through headquarters?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: It turns up that the Army had this
chart, and knew about 1t. How do you account for your
not getting 1t?

Admiral Bellinger: I don't know.,

Senator Ferguson: Did you know the radars were not
supposed to be working that morning?

Admiral Bellinger: I was surprised that they were
work:l.ng that morning.

Senator Ferguson: Why would you be surprised that
the radar was working?

Admiral Bellinger: Because I didn't think they were
set up and ready to go.

Senator 'Ferguaon: Then, as I understand 1it, you
didn’t even know that the Island had radar?

Admiral Bellinger: Oh, Ikew that the radar was
being installed, we were very interested in that.

Senstor Ferguson: But you didn't know they had
actually the radar working?

Admiral Bellinger: No, I didn't know 1t was actually

working that morning.
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Senator Ferguson: At any time did you know it was
wvorking before that?

Admiral Bellinger: I knew that they were establishing
their system and the radar had bean set up, and the indivi-
dual radars were working, yes, but the system had to be set
up to make it work intelligently, and they were in the pro-
cess of putting that into effect.

Senator Ferguson: Well, that isn't quite an answer
to my question. My question 1s, did you know prior to
the 7th that radar was established on the Island?

Admiral Béllinger: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Well, then, why didn't you get
in touch with the radar stations to ascertain if they
had picked up anything coming in or going out?

Admiral Bellinger: It would have been impossible
to have gotten in touch with the radar station. You
have got to go through the Army headquarters to get in
touch with 1t.

Senator Ferguson: Well, did you have to call General
short?

Admiral Bellinger: General Martin, General Martin'?
office.

Senator Ferguson: Why didn't you call General Martin

to find out what he had from his radar? That was one of
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the greatest instruments we had, wasn't 1t?

Admiral Bellinger: I am not positive I didn't do 1it.
I talked to Martin that day twice. I think I did, as a
matter of fact. I am not saying positively I did or not.

I could have also gotten that informstion from the
Air Combat, the fighter commander, He hed that -- General
Davidson was the one that was in charge of the interceptor.

Senator Ferguson: Well, we come down to this, that
you did not get any news about any radar on the Tth?

Admiral Bellinger: No, we dild not; at least I did
not.

Senator Ferguson: You we re in command?

Admiral Bellinger: I was in command of the long range

reconnaissance, and this striking force.

Senator Ferguson: Now, part of the duty of the striking

force would be to go out and get these carriers?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir; we wanted to know about
that; that was our main effort then.

Senator Ferguson: The reconnalissance would be toO
locate them, sc you had the most important force, as far
as intercepting this task force was concerned; is that
not true?

Admiral Bellinger: That is true.

Senator Ferguson: You don't remember now that you ever
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n6 ' || made eny inquiry as to what radar showed?
: Mr. Murphy: Will the Senator yield?
. < Senator Ferguson: Yes.
. Mr., Murphy: If he had asked General Davidson, General
° Il Davidson couldn't tell him. He didn't know.
n Admiral Bellinger: You are trylng to get me to say
g something definite describing my action. I probably did.
8 ! I donit know. T know I wanted that information. I took
= it up with my Operations Officer to see 1f he couldn't
g = get 1t too. We were both trying to figure how we could
; % get thatinformation.
c
. ; 5 Whether I talked personally, I am not sure, We were
% e trying to get the information.
E o Senator Ferguson: How far would your headquarters be
‘ - r’ from where this information would be?
s Admira.l'Belli.nger: About six miles,
rs ! Senator Ferguson: And the fifst attack was at T7:55.
g i When was the last one?
w fl‘ Admirel Bellinger: It lasted about two hours.
- t Senator Ferguson: About two hours.
' - l So you had two hours time there to try to locate
- where this task force was‘é
% ‘ Admiral Bellinger: No, sir. If they have got the
s ' information coming in there is the gquestion of getting the
25

|
l
|
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h7 ‘ information. It is two hours then, yes, but the getting
: of the information is only while the planes are in motion,
g coming from and going to.
.  Senator Ferguson: Well, is this true, that you had
; an untrailned Navy there as far as getting Intelligence
b from radar? Is that true, that you didn't know how to use
: radar, you had it but you didn't know that it was operating
f and you didn't know whether it was operating that morning?
’ Admiral Bellinger: The radar installations, the whole
é > set-up was an Army project.
é o’ Senator Ferguson: Then do we come --
% " Admiral Bellinger: The Navy did have radar on some
§ +4 of their ships. As a matter of fact that question has
:: =5 been discussed with reference to the use of that radar,
s I when it could be used, and where it could be used.
5 Senator Ferguson: What was the answer?
> r I Admiral Bellinger: There were certain sectors,
e | certaln places in Pearl Harbor where it could work.
i ‘ Senator Ferguson: Would it work in the sector here
% (indicating chart)?
. y Admiral Bellinger: It would have to work in a sector
= to the south, to the southerd, on account of the hills,
> et cetera.
as |
- Senator Ferguson: You are talking about the ship radar?
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h8 ; ‘ Admiral Bellinger: Yes.
" Senator Ferguson: I am talking sbout the Army radar.
= Admiral Bellinger: What I meant'ﬁan that the ship
: rader augmented and could augment Army radar when 1t was
: In a place where it could be used.
v | Sengtor Ferguson: Now, did the Army have radlo to
J | the Navy alrplanes and did the Navy airplanes have radio
s to the Army airplanes?
& Admiral Bellinger: No, sir.
§ o Senator Ferguson: In other words --
é i Admiral Bellinger: The communication to the Navy planes
; - was by Navy and the Army planes by the Army, and if the
§ % i Navy wanted to send information to any Army planes, the
| ; % information was telephoned over and they sent 1t.
Shef s | .
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Sen. Fergusaon

Senator Ferzuson: Then I unierstand that if the Orruni-
cations center had wanted to know, 1esired to know whether

those were Arry planes up to the north that rorning the Avry

| would have to get in touch wlth the Arpy, ani 1f they 1esireil

to know whether they were Navy planes they wouldl have to oall
the Navy?

Adriral Bellinger: That 1s cerrect.

Senator Ferguson: And you coull not ccmpunicate -~

Aamiral Bellinger: There was no set-up at that tire for
the control of all planes to keep knowledige of that kind.

senator Ferguson: Well, now, 111 we have guch a syster
thet the planes of the Navy had no corrunication with the Apmy
radlo? Is that where we stani on the-7th?

Admiral Bellinger: That 1s ocorredt.

Senator Ferguson: Why v:raa that true? Was that cooTiln-
ation?

AAmiral Bellinger: That was the situation. The Armry U1

not control Navy and Navy 411 not control Army.

senator Fergzuson: I undierstani.

Adriral Bellinzer: Ani, as a matter of fact, even up
until about two months after Decerber the 7th 411 we work out
a situation wheveby the Arry planes on long-ranze goouting

could be comprunicated with Aireotly f ror ry headquarters.

Now, thst hadl to be workel out ani, as I eay, 1T took about
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two ponths to 1 that.
Senator Ferguson: All right. Was that due to lack of
raterial anl ranpower?

AAriral Bellinger: That is a 11fficult thing to say. I

would say no, it was not.

Senator Ferguson: What was it Aue to! Because the two
depa rtrent s 111 not cooriinate?

Adriral Bellinger: Priravily that, yes, slr.

Senator Ferméon: Well, how 10 you account for the Arry
ani the Navy expecting war ani no cooperation to the extent
that you ocould corrunicate from the grouni to both the Army
anl the Navy planes in each of the Army an1l Navy set-ups?

Adriral Bellinger: Well, that is very easlly explaline.

Senator Ferguson: All right, explaln 1%,

Adriral Bellinger: There was one anil there was another.
One force was working under the ‘n_i_;vy Departrent ani one was
working unier the War Department. They were two separate
entities,

Senator Ferguson: And 1o I unierstand that you thought

that war was irmrinent?
AArivrel Bellinger: I thought warwas coming.
Senator Ferguson: Well, how far away?

Adriral Bellinger: Well, that was a questlon which I was

very much interested in.

B S — — g - — e — R — o
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Senator Ferguson: Well, you were out there on the grounA.

Adriral Bellinger: When I went out theve in 1940 I felt
that 1t was coring. It was a question how soon.

Senator Ferguson: All »izht, Now, you knew in 1940 that
war waeg coring; it was a question of how soon. Then why 111n't
you zet into a coniition so that you wouldi have one corrand
on that srall 1lslanAi?

Adriral Bellinger:; I would like to ask you how I was go-
inz to 4o that.

Senator Ferguson; Then I will ask you. I won't answer

you but I will ask you.

AdAriral Bellinger: I brought that subjeot up, too,

Senator Ferguson: All right.

Aqmriral Bellinger: I mrean 1n‘Oahu.

Senator ferguson: Why couldn't it be Aone? You give me
the faots,

Admirel Bellinger: I think you are in a much better po-
sitiod» than I ar. I have beeﬁ watching this.

Senator Ferguson: It coul?d be Aone. You A1l 1t after
Pearl Harbor, 4iin't you?

Adriral Bellinger: Unity of oommanﬁ was placed in ef-
fect very shortly after Pearl Harbor.

Senator Ferguson: Well, now, oould gomenne of the super-

jore in Weashington in the “rry an’t Nevy cguset tha& to be 1one?
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Adriral Bellinger: Yes, sir, I should think so.
Senator Ferguson: There 1s no Aoubt gbhaut that, 1s there?
Adriral Bellinzer: I don't think there ie any 4doubt

about 1t. There wight have been somwe objections ralsed:; I

1on't knowe

The Chairman: May I ask there, Senator? fould that have
been 1one in Oahu without referring 1t to Washington, under
what théy hal as an agreerent as to t he cooperation between
the Arpy ani1 Navy forces out there?

Adriral Bellinger: I 4on't believe it could have been.

The Chalrmran: Ybﬁ 10 not?

Adriral Bellinger: At least I know I dAiscussed this s ame
subject with Adrirel Kimrmrel.

Mr. Murphy: Will the Senator yield?

Senator Ferguson: I want to Just --

Mr. Murphy: There is evidence in the record that it

could be 4done in Oahu,
Adrmiral Bellinzer: It could be? |
Mr. Murphy: Yesy very 4efinite evidence.
Senator Ferguson: I want to read hie answer now.
Hrnimurphy: There 18 &8lso eviience that they talked for
four or five days ;n gsome little islanAi.

Senator Ferguson: Were you asked this queetion:

"If 2 measaze had been relaved to the Arpv that an
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3 enery subrarine ha1 been sunk, would that have placed your
3 ailr operating plan in effeot?"

4 Now, this answer 1s not clear to re ani that 1s the reason

5 I ar going to read &t, (Reaiing)

6 "I 4oubt 1t. I think it woul4d have requireql sowra
7 higher guthority in the Arry to place it in effect. Now,
8 in or1er to amplify that statement, I would like to re-
0 fer to an alr rail 1rill which was plarnedi by the Arncy
g 10 subgsegyuent to the Joint estirate ani oriers issuei set-
= r
; 1 ting up the ailr 4efense plan. During one night, prior
. i 13 | to the operations for the next 4ay, I recelvel a message
%‘3 stating that the Borber Corrani was no longer subjeot
% s to the ordiers of Corranier, Patrol Wing Two. I won1ergd
o 15 what was the matter. I finally found out that the Arnmy
ve wantel to revert to the old ‘Joint Action! wherein, 1if
ke | the Navy wanted the Arpy to assist, it was me cessary for
o the Navy cormmani to so request the Ammyt Therefore, 1in
19 1 the early mworning, at five o'ocloock, the Arry Borber Com-
e rand asked1 Af I was going to request the Army to assist.
. 2 I inforred hir that I 411 not undierstani that that was
5 necessary in our agreerent, that the Cormranier-in-Chief,
- Paoifioc, wae the only one to ask the Avrmry to asslist. He
% statedl he would 1like to participate in this 1?%11. I
25

!l sall I would give hir the information ani he oould act as
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a he saw fit, an1 in aoccoriance with his oriers. After
: 3 that I made an official report of same to the Comranier-
l ¢ in-Chlef ani also the Corrander, Naval Bage Defense, anq
; 5 also preparel a letter for the Comrmander, Naval Base De-
: e fense Force, to General Short, trying to straighten this
1 out. In other woris, to place the plan for ailr 1efense
3 into effeot evidently required guthorization fromr hizher
0 Arey autharity for each instance. My letter, Just re-
§ 10 1 ferrel to, was designel to correct that situation.*
; t! D14 you ever correot the siltuation?
’ E i2 Admiral Bellinger: Yes, siv.
g 3 ' Senator Ferzugon: When was this?
a
§ 14 Aqriral Bellinger: Within liri tations. It 411 not
?' i3 aotually bring about a cooriination like was necessary or
14 unity of corrand like was necessary, but we 111 not hawe that
17 sare situation wmwe up again.
18 | Senator Ferguson: . When had this happened at five o'oclock
19 1, i1n the rorning that you tried to zet thig stralghtened out?
20 || Do you know sbout what ronth or what part of the month?
. 81 Adriral Bellinger: It happened about July: July 1941,
23 Senator Ferguson: Now, you told us this rorning that
23 | your Intelligence offi cer knew about these war warnings.
243 Adriral Bellinger: No, elr.
29 !, Senator Ferpueon: Whoee Tntelli~ence officer?

|
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Adriral Bellinzer: An Intelllizence offioér of the Naval
Alr Station, who was attachei to the District but he was on
the alr statlon.

Senetor Ferzuson: Di4dn't you have access to him?

Adriral Bellinger: I hal aocess to himr by sendiing for
hir andi he care. He was not unier re, not part of my cor-
mani, NO.

Senator Ferguson: When 4141 you send for him?

Adr¥iral Bellingzer: I sent for hir when I heard that there
was or hal been a warning message of somre 4desorlption and he
was supposeil to have known about 1t and1 he was the one that
gave inforration to this officer who was in my cormrani.

Senator Ferguson: Well, on the sixth you have tol?d us
thgt there was peace in Hawall.

Adriral Belllinger: Peace with Japan.

Senator Ferguson: Yes., Well, between whor was the wer
going on in Hawalll

Adriral Belllinger: Excuse me,

Senator Ferguson: You 1inilogte then that there was war
in Hawail between some other people, not Japan. Who was 1t
between?

Adriral Bellinger: I 1on.t know exactly what you mean.

Senator Ferguson: Well, I took your answer when you saiAd

 "peace wlth Japan" ~-
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Adriral Bellinger: That is what I mreant, what I was re-
ferring to. Ie'yove at peace with Japan, that 1s all.

Senator Ferguson: All right. An1l you 411 not antiocipate
any war that rorning?

Adrivral Bellinger: No, sir,

Senator Ferguson: It was the farthest thing fror your
ﬁini probably, is that right?

Adriral Bellinger: Yes, 8ir,

Mr. Murphy: He was thinking about his sore throat.

Senator Ferguson: If you would have had more air fiells-
in Hawali ~-- you sald sorething about you 411 not have space
for your planes. Were you corowiel for alr space?

Adriral Bellinger: Let me go back to that. The planes
that I ar speaking about are seaplanes, great big two-motcred
seaplanes, which core out of the water, core up a conorete
rarp ani1 are pulled up a oonoretdjplatform an1l you have got
to keep ther on that or else you cannot hanile ther.

Senator Ferguson: Was the Navy readly for war on the 6th
an1 7th of Deocemrber 1941 as far as Hawall was concerned, -
Pearl Harbor?

Adriral Bellinger:; Realy for war?

Senator Ferzuson: Yes.

Aqmiral Bellinger: I would say "No", nelther was any

other place in the United States.
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Witness Belllnger Questions by: Sen.Ferguson

Senator Ferzuson: AndA you are 4definite that i n that ronth,
that we were not reaiy for war in Hawaill?

Adriral Bellinger: When I say "“re-dy for war" I mean 1in
every way that they are.aupposeﬂ.to be realy. I 410 not mean
just merely the individual but I rean in the overall ploture.

Senatnf Ferzugson: Did you have enough of equipmrent?

AAmirsal Bellineger: No, sirp

Senator Ferguson: Then as I uniersgtani it you were not
readly for war.

Adriral Bellinger: That is what I sall; we were not ready
for*waru.

Senator Ferguson: And you 411 not expect 1t?7

AAriral Bellinger: I 411 not expect it then, no, slr.

Senator Ferguson: That 18 all.

Mr, Murphy: May I ask this question?

Adriral, we were stlll getting ready for war a month be-
fore and a day before the war entled, weren't we, 8till get-
ting wore prepared?

Adriral Bellinger: Yesg, sir, we were.

¥r. Murphy: Di41 you ever see a corranier who felt that
he ha1 what he would1 have liked to have to fight#he:enemy
an1 feel perfectly satisfied, fully satisfied?

Adriral Bellinzer: No, sir, but there av tires that you

1ike to get at the encry with what yeu have geot.
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Witneses Bellinger Questions by: Sen.Lucas

Mr. Murphy: Now, I wouldq like to say this: The question
was askedl of you why Aiin't you call the Interceptor Cormrani?
The eviience in that reg ari 1is that General Short 114 not
have thls inforratlion at least until the day after, that Aif
t miral Kirrel 4141 not know 1t until at least the 4day after and
1f you called General Davidson he would not know ani if you
hai called the Interceptor Comrand, unlese Lieutenant Tyler
was there to tell you, you would not be able to findi out,
either hir or McDonalAd.

Senator Lucag: May I ask one question?

The Vice Chalrpran: Were you through, Senator Ferguson?
| Senator Ferguson: No, I hai a question, but go aheaid,
| Senator.

| Senator Lucas: Ad1riral Bellinger, what 411 you under-

stani by the war warning messaze of Noverber the 27th, 1941
sent by Alriral Stark to Admiral Kirmrel when Adriral Stark

aivised Adriral Kirmel to"execute an appropriate defensive

(i Adeployrent preparatory to carrying out the tasks assizned

in WPL-46%" What does that mean to you? What would that

t mrean to you?

1eal 1iffe1*ent than 1t might have meant then and1 that 1s

} Adriral Belllnger: Of course, now it wouldl mesn a great
1 one of these questlons that your guess 1s as 2001 as mine now.
!

Senateor Lugas: Well, what 4114 the Navy Department have
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: 8en. Lucas

in rini when they saii, “Execute an appropriatte 1efensive
1eployrent?" What 1141 that mean to you as a part of the
force out there?

Alriral Bellinger: We11; "qeployrent" means to place un-
1ts.

Senator Lucas? What would yau 10 with your planes unier
that sort of an order?

(No response.)

Senator Lucas: You 4on't know?

Adrival Bellinger: That 18 a questlion, of oourse, that
I couldbay I might have 4done anything, I could have done
anything, but what Aces it mean now? I ar mot an indiividual
that wants to say what I ar going to 4o or what I coulql
have 1one.

Senator Lucas$ I unierstani.

Adriral Bellinger: I am perfectly willing to standi on
what I 0.

Senator Lucasi Assumring that jou hail seen General
Marshall is message, which went to AAriral Kiprrel, where they
i1irected long-range reconnalssance in his ressage -~ you are
fariliar with that?

Adriral Bellingevr: Yes.

Senator Lucas: Take Marshall's mressage anil take Stark's

ressaze anl construe ther tozether, What would you have %one
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Witness Bellingzer Questioneg by: Sen.Lucas

with your planes?

Adriral Bellinger: Well, 1t 1ces say, "Make a recon-
naissance." I have forgotten whether it saili1 "long-range"
or not.

Senator Luocas: Well, "make a reconnaissance," I thlnk
is what it says, "that you deemr neocessary." "Make such re-
connalssance as you 4deer neocessary", I think is the way 1t
reais.

Now, take that message of General Marshall's and take the
meaaége of Adrirgl Stark's, ;hloh starts out, "This 1s a.war1
warning anl tgke appropriate defensive 4eployment", a comr-
bination of the two of ther: What would that tell you as a
man that had charge of the patrol ani long-range planes?
Don't you pofatch your head too hari over thgt one.

Adimiral Bellinger: Well, I see you are trylng to Zet re
to rake an answer which --

Senator Luocas: No, if you cannot make an answer I 41on't
want you to,

Adriral Bellingeré (Continuinz) -- I 4on't think I can
0. As I say, I am not going to make an answevr as to saylng
what I might have Aone or what I would have done because thils
is four years since 1t happenedl. As I say, I would llke to

think I woulAd have taken the appropriate action irrmedilately.

Senator Lucas: Yes. I appreciate that it is a most
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Witnese Bellinger Questions by: Sen.Rucas

Aifficult question for you to answer ani the only reason =-

Admiral Bellinger: I cannot answer 1it.

Senator Lucaeg: (Continuing) -; that I place that ques-
tion before you, 8ir, 1s in view of the fact that you 1e-
gired to have before the corrittee the fact that you 4i1 not
have any of these messages anl I presuredl that you would want
ug to interrozate you just a little bit upon that fact be-
cauge you toldl us that you 4i1 not see any of these_meaaagea
ani 1t would give me somre lndlcation that you'théught gome~
body should havﬁ ziven ther to you, otherwise you would not
have told the comrlttee that,

Adriral Bellinzer: Well, I assured you would have asked
me 1f I hal not told you.

Senator Lucas: Well, that may be true,

Adriral Bellinger: Ag a matter of fact, I 111 not state
that in any staterent.

Senator Lucas: I willl net press the questlon, sir.

Mr. Murphy: May I ask one questionf?

The Vice Chairman: Senator Ferguson has some questlons

to ask at this tire.

Senator Ferguson: Adriral, I would l1ike to read to you

the last sentences

"You are 1irectel to uniertake such reconnalilssance

anl other measures as you deer necessary, but these
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. I_itnou Bellinger Quesiions by: Sen.Ferguson
2 e asures ahou]."l be carried out soc as not, corra, repeat
. 3 not, comra, to alarmr the civil population or 4lsoclose
4 intent. " .
[ Would that have made any 1ifference with that in 1it?
e Admiral Bellinger: I think all mroAlflications have a

> bearing on the general thought.
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‘Witness Bellinger Questions by: Senator Fergugqn

Senatdr Ferguson: One or two more guestions. You
got out a letter on November 19, a revised schedule for
remainder of the second quarter fiﬁcal yYear. Did that
carry through December, November and December?

Admiral Bellinger: That was going on in December,
yes.

Mr. Murphy : 19419

Senator Ferguson: That is Exhibit 113-C. Now that
would cover November and December?

Admirel Bellinger: That covers a part of November,
and December, I believe I am correct in that.

Mr. Murphy: 19417

Admiral Bellinger: It covers g prart of Novembey
and December.

The Vice Chairman: What year?

Admlral Bellinger: 19041,

Senetor Ferguson: Admiral Kimmel approved that,
did he not?

Admiral Bellinger: Yes, sir,

Senator Ferguson: He approved it on November 22,
19417

'AdmiralBellinger: Yes,

Sénator Ferguson: Then we have charts in the back

of that indicating what you did with certain planes.
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Witness Bellinger Questions by: Senator Ferguson
h?2 Admiral Bellinger : Yes, sir.

; Senator Ferguson: Now, was there any alﬁeratian
3 of that after you had it approved by Admiral Kimmel? Did
; you make any changes in the schedule?
: # Admliral Bellinger: Not to my knowledge, no, sir.
i i Senator Ferguson: There were no changes at all?
. ;; Admliral Bellinger: No, sir,
: | Senator Ferguson: That is all I have.
'T Admiral Bellinger: Except this; to be technically
§ i éé correct, patrol squadrbn 22 came back on the 5th of Decem-
p g 3 f ber.
$ Lt
b: f‘ Senator Ferguson: But that was under a specific
;} g A ; order? y
i & | .AdmiraliBellinger:L'Yes.
x IE The Vice Chﬁirman: Mr. Murphy has a question.
e rf Mr. Murphy: IlV&S just going to say in conclusion,
= 1 Admirel, that I am not asking*you to place yourself in
A f%.Admiral Kimmel’s position with all of the material he
* }i had through the months, but, as I take it, since you were
o ii an alr dficer, and alr-minded, 1f there was a discussion
i ‘; about the possibility of an attack on1ﬁhwaii, your mind
N ‘awould have been that it would be from the air and there
s i! vas danger of the attack coming from the air?
f Admirel Bellinger: TIf theye

W as denger of ap attack
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| Witn®ss Bellinger Questions by: Mr. Murphy

on Hawall, I would expect it to come from the air.
Mr. Murphy: That is right.
The Vice Chairman: Does counsel have anything?

Mr. Richardson: No.
The Vice Chalrman: Admirel, do you have any further

information that you feel could be of assistance to this
committee in considering the guestion here under sonsider-
ation?

Admirel Bellinger: No, sir, I do not think I cen
-add anything more to it,

The Vice Chairmen: Do you have any other evidence
that you desire to present?

Admiral Bellinger: No, sir;

The V1ce Chairman: On behalf of the committes I want
to thank you for your appearance, the information you have
glven the committee, and your epparent desire to be help-
ful to us in this inquiry.

Admiral Bellinger: Thank you very much. I appreciate
the committee?s consideration.

The Vice Chairman: You may now be excused with the
thanks of the committee.

Admirel Bellinger: Thank you very much, sir.

The Vice Chairman: The comnmittee will now ad journ until
ten o'clock in the morning.
| (Whereupon, at 4:40 p. m., the committee recessed until

lgigfs o'clock a.m., the following day, Friday, February 1,
19406, .




